HAYES' STORE (FORMER)



Former Hayes' Store

Location

4-8 ROUGHEAD STREET, LEONGATHA, SOUTH GIPPSLAND SHIRE

Municipality

SOUTH GIPPSLAND SHIRE

Level of significance

Included in Heritage Overlay

Heritage Overlay Numbers

HO9

Heritage Listing

South Gippsland Shire

Statement of Significance

Last updated on -

What is significant?

The former Hayes Stores, constructed by Mr Kennedy in 1891 at the corner of Hughes and Roughead Streets, Leongatha. They are a single storey pair of shops with separating brick piers, rendered sign panels and corbel parapet caps, original shopfronts and doors. The northern shop has a simple raised triangular parapet pediment while the other has a straight parapet. The buildings have longitudinal hip roofs behind the parapets and there are corbelled brick chimneys. The side wall steps down to the eaves line with a simple ogee curve. Their brickwork and render is now painted. The three original shopfront windows are divided into six panels above recessed brick

stalls. On the south side wall is an early painted sign 'phone 62' within a black circle.

The brick addition at the north end and the reconstructed timber verandah are not significant.

How is it significant?

The former Hayes Stores are of local historic and aesthetic significance to South Gippsland Shire.

Why is it significant?

Historically, they are believed to be the oldest commercial buildings remaining in Leongatha and are among the oldest in the Shire. They are highly important in demonstrating the basic nature of the first phase of commercial development of the town that occurred at the time of the completion of the South Eastern Railway, and how this initially occurred on both sides of the railway line. Because of their high level of integrity, they have considerable potential to illustrate these aspects of the region's cultural heritage. (Criterion A)

Aesthetically, they are recognisably early shops with simple form and detail that is unique in the Shire, which are also notable for their rare brick construction. (Criteria B, D & E)

Heritage Study/Consultant	South Gippsland - South Gippsland Heritage Study, David Helms with Trevor Westmore, 2004;
Construction dates	1891,
Other Names	aka PA Dunnes Store,
Hermes Number	30852
Property Number	

Physical Description 1

The former Hayes Stores are a single storey pair of shops with separating brick piers, rendered sign panels and corbel parapet caps, original shopfronts and doors. The northern shop has a simple raised triangular parapet pediment while the other has a straight parapet. The buildings have longitudinal hip roofs behind the parapets and there are corbelled brick chimneys. The side wall steps down to the eaves line with a simple ogee curve. Their brickwork and render is now painted. The three original shopfront windows are divided into six panels above recessed brick stalls. On the south side wall is an early painted sign 'phone 62' within a black circle.

Recently, a relatively sympathetic brick addition has been made at the north end, and a timber post verandah has been constructed on the basic of historic photographs.

This place/object may be included in the Victorian Heritage Register pursuant to the Heritage Act 2017. Check the Victorian Heritage Database, selecting 'Heritage Victoria' as the place source.

For further details about Heritage Overlay places, contact the relevant local council or go to Planning Schemes Online http://planningschemes.dpcd.vic.gov.au/